
Anabelle Island 
 Community Development District 

 
JULY 13, 2021 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



 Anabelle Island  
  Community Development District 

  475 West Town Place 
             Suite 114  

  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
1-866-705-2554 Code:  665769 

 
              

  
July 6, 2021 
 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Anabelle Island Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community Development 
District will be held Tuesday, July 13, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks Amenity Center, 
845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida 32065.   
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (regarding agenda items listed below) 
 
 III. Consideration of Minutes of the June 8, 2021 Meeting  
 
 IV. Acceptance of the Minutes of the June 8, 2021 Audit Committee Meeting 
 
 V. Acceptance of Audit Committee’s Recommendation; Consideration of Proposals 

for Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Services 
  
 VI. Discussion of Fiscal Year 2022 Budget 
 
  VII. Staff Reports   
  A. Attorney  
   
  B. Engineer  
  
   C. Manager  
   
 VIII. Supervisors Requests  
 
 IX. Audience Comments 
 



 X. Financial Statements as of June 30, 2021 
 
 XI. Consideration of Funding Request No. 4 
 
 XII. Next Scheduled Meeting – August 10, 2021 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 
 XIII. Adjournment  
  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ANABELLE ISLAND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community 

Development District was held Tuesday, June 8, 2021 at 2:12 p.m. at Plantation Oaks Amenity 

Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida.  

 

 Present and constituting a quorum: 
 
 Jim McDade Chairman 
 Kurt von der Osten Supervisor 
 Rose Bock Supervisor 
 Darren Gowens Supervisor 
 
 
 Also, present were: 
 
 
 Jim Perry by phone District Manager 
 Lauren Gentry District Counsel 
 David Taylor by phone Dunn & Associates 
 Marilee Giles GMS, LLC 
  
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order. Four Board members were present constituting a 

quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSNESS   Oath of Office for Newly Elected   
       Supervisors 
 Ms. Giles stated the oath of office is for Darren and Rose and we have taken care of that 

before this meeting. 

 

  



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

2 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Minutes of the May 11, 
2021 Meeting 

 Ms. Giles asked are there any comments or questions on the May 11, 2021 meeting 

minutes. There being none, 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock, seconded by Mr. McDade, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the May 11, 2021 Meeting, were approved as 
presented.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of the Minutes of the May 11, 
2021 Landowners’ Meeting 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Osten, seconded by Mr. McDade, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the May 11, 2021 Landowner Meeting, were 
accepted.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Public Hearings 
A. Public Hearing – Adopting the Uniform Method of Collection, Resolution 2021-31 

 Ms. Giles stated next on the agenda is public hearings to consider Resolutions 2021-31, 

2021-32, 2021-33 and 2021-34. These hearings were scheduled at your prior meeting. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Osten with all in favor 
the public hearing to adopt the uniform method of collection was 
opened.  

 

 There being no members of the public present, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. McDade seconded by Ms. Bock with all in 
favor the public hearing was closed. 

 

 Ms. Gentry stated the first resolution is to use the uniform method of collection for your 

assessments, which means you are able to collect your assessments on the tax roll.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. McDade, seconded by Mr. Osten, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2021-31 Adopting the Uniform Method of 
Collection, was approved.  



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

3 

  

 Items C and D taken out of order. Item B will be taken at the end of this agenda item. 

 

C. Public Hearing Relating to the Annual Appropriations and Adopting the Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2021, Resolution 2021-33 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. McDade with all in 
favor the public hearing relating to the annual appropriations and 
adopting the budget for Fiscal Year 2021 was opened. 

 

 There being no members of the public present,  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. McDade with all in 
favor the public hearing was closed. 

 

 Ms. Gentry stated section 2 will be filled in with details from the budget that is attached 

to the resolution. The purpose of this resolution is to finalize the budget for the remainder of the 

fiscal year that will end on September 30th.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock, seconded by Mr. Osten, with all in favor, 
Resolution 2021-33 Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021, was approved.  

 

D. Public Hearing Adopting the Rules of Procedure, Resolution 2021-34 

 

On MOTION by Mr. McDade seconded by Ms. Bock with all in 
favor the public hearing regarding the adoption of the Rules of 
Procedure was opened. 

 

 There being no members of the public present, 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. McDade with all in 
favor the public hearing was closed. 

 



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

4 

 Ms. Giles stated Resolution 2021-34 adopts the Rules of Procedure that were introduced at 

your last meeting. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. McDade, seconded by Mr. Osten, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2021-34 Adopting the Rules of Procedure, was 
approved.  

 

 Mr. Taylor joined the meeting by telephone conference at this time. 

 

B. Public Hearing – Imposing and Levying Master Special Assessments, Resolution 
2021-32 

 Ms. Gentry stated at the last meeting you initiated the financing process for debt 

assessments, you adopted a resolution that declared your intent to levy assessments and set a public 

hearing for today. That hearing was noticed consistent with Florida Law in the newspaper and 

through direct mailed notice. We are levying a master assessment lien for the property and what 

we are saying to the world is that for all this property that is subject to the lien this is the maximum 

assessment level that these properties will have. The master lien doesn’t actually levy the 

assessments that is done through a supplemental assessment resolution in connection with your 

actual bond issuance, but it does set the maximum levels consistent with your assessment report. 

At the end of this hearing the board will have taken the necessary steps to levy the master lien 

across the district for its system of improvements. 

 Ms. Gentry stated that there are certain things I want to get on the record from the engineer 

and assessment consultant. 

 Ms. Gentry asked Mr. Taylor to briefly review the engineer’s report and describe any 

modifications that have been made since it was presented to the board. 

 Mr. Taylor stated I’m not aware of any revisions since it was presented to the board. 

 Ms. Gentry asked can you recap the type of improvements that were included in the capital 

improvement plan and the estimated total dollar amount? I can read the number to you and you 

can confirm if that is correct. I have a report that is dated March 31, 2021 and the total improvement 

cost in the report is $24,215,400. Mr. Taylor stated that is correct.  

 Ms. Gentry asked in your experience are the cost estimates in your engineer’s report 

reasonable and proper? Mr. Taylor responded yes. 



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

5 

 Ms. Gentry asked do you have any reason to believe that the capital improvement plan 

cannot be carried out by the district? Mr. Taylor responded no. 

 Mr. Taylor left the telephone conference at this time. 

 Mr. Perry joined the meeting by telephone conference at this time. 

 Ms. Gentry asked can you generally describe the purpose of the assessment report for the 

board? Mr. Perry stated the master assessment methodology sets the benefits that are accrued to 

each of the lots to be developed in the district. The construction improvement plan in one of the 

tables will outline the different types of improvements that are anticipated, and if all of the 

improvements are financed by a bond issue you will see a master bond sizing for all those 

improvements. This master methodology sets the maximum benefit allowed, but subsequently the 

district will be looking at a supplemental assessment methodology, which will reflect the financing 

that the district intends to do in the future and that financing will then be a lien on each of the 

individual landowners and assessments will be collected on an annual basis.  

 Ms. Gentry stated reading from your report here in Table 3, the total par amount of bonds 

that we were working with for this report is listed as $31,240,000. Is that correct? Mr. Perry 

answered yes. That is the maximum amount that can be issued by the district. Ms. Gentry asked, 

in your professional opinion do the lands subject to the assessments receive special benefits from 

the district’s capital improvement plan? Mr. Perry stated they do. 

 Ms. Gentry asked are the master assessments reasonably apportioned among the lands 

subject to the special assessments? Mr. Perry responded they are. 

 Ms. Gentry asked is it reasonable, proper and just to assess the costs of the capital 

improvement plan as a system of improvements against the lands in the district in accordance with 

your methodology? Mr. Perry stated it is and that is the standard for most districts. 

 Ms. Gentry asked is it your opinion that the special benefits the lands will receive as set 

forth in the final assessment roll will be equal to or in excess of the maximum master assessments 

when they are allocated? Mr. Perry stated yes. 

 Ms. Gentry asked is it your opinion that it is in the best interests of the district that the 

master assessments be paid and collected in accordance with the methodology and the assessment 

resolutions? Mr. Perry stated it is.  

 Mr. Perry left the telephone conference at this time. 



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

6 

 Ms. Gentry stated you have heard from your two professionals regarding the findings that 

I will ask you to make in a few minutes. I will note for the record there are no members of the 

public present.  

 Ms. Gentry read the title of Resolution 2021-32: A resolution making certain findings, 

authorizing an improvement plan for the master assessment area; adopting a capital improvement 

plan; providing an estimated cost of improvements, adopting an assessment report; equalizing, 

approving, confirming and levying debt assessments on the master assessment area; addressing the 

finalization of special assessments; addressing the payment of debt assessments and the method of 

collection; providing for the allocation of debt assessments and true-up payments; addressing 

government property and transfers of property to units of local, state and federal government; 

authorizing an assessment notice; and providing for severability, conflicts and an effective date. 

 Ms. Gentry stated I will summarize the substantive sections of the resolution. Section 1 

sets forth your authority to adopt this resolution, section 2 makes certain findings necessary for the 

imposition of a master assessment lien: those findings in section A – C describe the improvements 

that the district has authorized to undertake and describe the adoption of the declaring resolution 

and the capital improvement plan. D-J describe the debt assessments, the adoption of the declaring 

resolution, the publication of the declaring resolution and notice of this public hearing. Section K 

makes the following findings: it makes findings related to the capital improvement plan and finds 

it is in the district’s best interests to adopt and assess for the master project. The project, 

assessments and sale/issuance of bonds serve a valid public purpose and are in the best interests 

of the district and its landowners and residents. The costs of the project are reasonable and proper, 

and it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the costs of the project against the master 

assessment area. The improvements benefit the developable property within the master assessment 

area. The debt assessment constitute a special benefit on all the property on the assessment roll 

and the benefit is equal to or greater than the debt assessments imposed on the property. The 

assessments are fairly and reasonably allocated. It is in the best interests of the district to pay the 

assessments and collect them as set forth in the resolution and it is necessary to issue bonds to pay 

the costs of the project. The remainder of the resolution authorizes the project described in your 

engineer’s report that makes up the capital improvement plan, it identifies the costs of the project, 

which are consistent with the engineer’s report, it adopts an assessment report, it equalizes, 

approves, confirms and levies the master assessment lien, it describes the process of issuing 



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

7 

supplemental assessment resolutions, it provides a mechanism for finalizing assessments, provides 

for payment and prepayment of the assessments, allocation of the assessments, application of 

true-up payments and it addresses certain property that may be exempt such as property owned by 

governments and it provides for the recording of an assessment notice. 

 Again, I will note that no members of the public are present and unless the board has any 

questions, we would be looking for a motion to adopt this resolution. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock, seconded by Mr. McDade, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2021-32 Imposing and Levying Master Special 
Assessments, was approved.  

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2021-35 
Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2022 and Setting a Public Hearing 
Date to Adopt  

  

On MOTION by Mr. McDade, seconded by Mr. Osten, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2021-35 Approving the Proposed FY22 budget and 
Setting a Public Hearing for August 10, 2021 was approved.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Audit Committee’s 
Recommendation; Approval of Audit 
Criteria and Authorization for Staff to 
Publish an RFP for Auditing Services  

 Ms. Giles stated the audit committee met and approved the audit criteria just prior to 

this meeting and we are looking for a motion to accept the audit committee’s recommendation on 

the criteria and authorize staff to issue the RFP. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. McDade ,seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, the audit criteria approved and recommended by the audit 
committee was accepted and staff was authorized to notice the RFP 
for audit services. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

   



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

8 

B. Engineer 
 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

C. Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters – 0  

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 
 There being none, the next item followed.  

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 
 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Funding Request No. 3 
 

On MOTION by Mr. McDade, seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, Funding Request No. 3 in the amount of $12,045.61, was 
approved.  

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – July 13, 2021 @ 
2:00 p.m. 

 Ms. Giles stated the next scheduled meeting will be July 13, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. in the same 

location. 

 
FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock, seconded by Mr. McDade, with all in 
favor, the meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ANABELLE ISLAND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The Anabelle Island Community Development District Audit Committee met Tuesday, 

June 8, 2021 at 2:09 p.m. at Plantation Oaks Amenity Center 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, 

Orange Park, Florida.  

 

 Present and constituting a quorum: 
 
  
 Jim McDade Chairman 
 Kurt von der Osten Supervisor 
 Rose Bock Supervisor 
 Darren Gowens Supervisor 
  
 
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Marilee Giles GMS, LLC 
 Lauren Gentry District Counsel 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the audit committee meeting to order and called the roll. Four Board 

members were present constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Review and Selection of Audit RFP  
    Criteria 
 Ms. Giles stated the evaluation criteria developed by Hopping Green & Sams is included 

in the agenda package and includes ability of personnel, proposers experience, understanding the 

scope of work, ability to perform the required services and price. When the committee approves 

the criteria we will bring it before the Board to approve and they will direct staff to issue an RFP. 

We will also provide the notice to CPA firms who perform CDD audits in the State of Florida.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. McDade seconded by Mr. Bock with all in favor 
the audit criteria was approved as presented. 



June 8, 2021 Anabelle Island CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS   Other Business 
 There being none, 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. McDade with all in 
favor the audit committee adjourned. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Ability of Personnel Proposer's Experience Understanding of Scope 
of Work

Ability to Furnish the 
Required Services Price

(e.g., geographic locations 
of the firm's headquarters 

or permanent office in 
relation to the project; 

capabilities and experience 
of key personnel; present 

ability to manage this 
project; evaluation of 

existing workload; 
proposed staffing levels, 

etc.)

(e.g., past record and 
experience of the Proposer 
in similar projects; volume 

of work previously 
performed by the firm; past 

performance for other 
Community Development 

Districts in other contracts; 
character; integrity; 

reputation of respondent, 
etc.)

Extent to which the 
proposal demonstrates an 

understanding of the 
District's needs for the 

services requested.

Extent to which the 
proposal demonstrates the 

adequacy of proposer's 
financial resources and 
stability as a business 

entity necessary to 
complete the services 

required (e.g., the 
existence of any natural 

disaster plan for business 
operations).

Points will be awarded 
based upon the price bid 
for the rendering of the 

services and 
reasonableness of the price 

to services.

Point Total

Proposer 20 20 20 20 20 100

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank

Grau & Associates

Anabelle Island Community Development District
Auditor Selection Evaluation Criteria





































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Approved	Budget
FY	2022



General	Fund
Budget Page	1-2
Narrative Page	3-8

Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District

TABLE	OF	CONTENTS



Approved
Budget

Description FY	2022

Revenues

Developer	Contributions 550,329$	 		
Special	Assessments 54,798$	 		

Total	Revenues 605,127$	 		

Expenditures

Administrative

Supervisors	Fees 12,000$	 		
FICA	Expense 918$	 		
Engineering 5,000$	 		
Attorney 12,000$	 		
Arbitrage 750$	 		
Assessment	Roll 5,000$	 		
Dissemination	Agent 3,500$	 		
Annual	Audit 3,900$	 		
Trustee 6,500$	 		
Management	Fees 45,000$	 		
Website	Maintenance 1,250$	 		
Information	Technology 1,800$	 		
Telephone 200$	 		
Postage 600$	 		
Insurance 6,550$	 		
Printing	&	Binding 250$	 		
Legal	Advertising 2,500$	 		
Other	Current	Charges 500$	 		
Office	Supplies 100$	 		
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175$	 		

Total	Administrative 108,493$	 		

Field

Security-	monitoring 45,000$	 		
Electric 1,500$	 		
Water	&	Sewer/Irrigation 30,000$	 		
Repairs	&	Maintenance 5,000$	 		
Landscape	-	Contract 61,977$	 		
Landscape	-	Contingency 5,000$	 		
Landscape	-	Pond	Banks 39,000$	 		
Lake	Maintenance 10,000$	 		
Irrigation	Repairs 10,000$	 		

Total	Field 207,477$	 		

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Approved	Operating	Budget

Page 1



Approved
Budget

Description FY	2022

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Approved	Operating	Budget

Amenity

Insurance 30,000$	 		
Phone/Internet/Cable 3,000$	 		
Electric 16,000$	 		
Water/Irrigation 6,000$	 		
Gas	 1,250$	 		
Refuse	Service 2,500$	 		
Security	Monitoring 11,497$	 		
Access	Cards 2,500$	 		
Field	Mgmt/Admin 20,000$	 		
Landscape	-	Contract 50,000$	 		
Fitness	Equipment	Lease	(Sofitco) 17,500$	 		
Janitorial	Maintenance 28,000$	 		
Janitorial	Supplies 4,000$	 		
Pool	Maintenance 12,900$	 		
Facility	Maintenance 7,500$	 		
Repairs	&	Maintenance 4,310$	 		
Special	Events 4,000$	 		
Fitness	Center	Repairs/Supplies 900$	 		
Office	Supplies 1,000$	 		
ASCAP/BMI	License	Fees 500$	 		
Pest	Control 800$	 		
Capital	Outlay 15,000$	 		
Reserves 50,000$	 		

Total	Amenity	Center 289,157$	 		

Total	Expenditures 605,127$	 		

Excess	Revenues/(Expenditures) -$	 		

FY	2022
Net	Assessment $54,798

Gross	Assessment $58,294
		Per	Unit	net	Assessments $782.83

		Per	Unit	Gross	Assessments $832.77
Homes	Platted/Sold 70

Page 2



Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District	

General	Fund	Budget	

Page 3 

REVENUES:	

Assessments	

The	District	will	levy	a	non	ad-valorem	special	assessment	on	all	taxable	property	within	the	District	
to	fund	all	of	the	General	Operating	Expenditures	for	the	fiscal	year.		The	assessment	may	either	be	
invoiced	directly	to	the	property	owner	or	placed	on	the	Clay	County	Tax	Roll.		

EXPENDITURES:	

Administrative:	

Supervisors	Fees	

Chapter	190,	The	Florida	Statutes,	allows	each	Board	member	to	receive	$200	per	meeting	not	
to	exceed	$4,800	per	year	per	supervisor	for	the	time	devoted	to	District	business	and	meetings.	

FICA	Expense	

Represents	the	Employer’s	share	of	Social	Security	and	Medicare	taxes	withheld	from	the	Board	
of	Supervisors	checks.	

Engineering	

The	District	will	be	providing	general	engineering	services	to	the	District,	e.g.,	attendance	and	
preparation	for	monthly	board	meetings,	review	invoices,	etc.	

Attorney	

The	District’s	 legal	 counsel,	 Hopping,	 Green	&	 Sams	will	 be	 providing	 general	 legal	 services	 to	 the	
District,	 i.e.	 attendance	 and	 preparation	 for	 monthly	 meetings,	 review	 operating	 &	 maintenance	
contracts,	etc.	

Arbitrage	

The	District	is	required	to	annually	have	an	arbitrage	rebate	calculation	on	the	District’s	Series	Special	
Assessment	Revenue	Bonds.	

Assessment	Roll	

The	District	 has	 contracted	with	 Governmental	Management	 Services,	 LLC	 for	 the	 certification	 and	
collection	of	the	District’s	annual	maintenance	and	debt	service	assessments.		Assessments	on	platted	
lots	are	collected	by	agreement	with	Clay	County	while	unplatted	assessments	maybe	collected	directly	
by	District	and/or	by	County	Tax	Collector.	



Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District	

General	Fund	Budget	

Page 4 

Dissemination	

The	District	has	contracted	with	GMS,	LLC	to	act	as	the	Dissemination	Agent	for	the	District	to	prepare	
the	Annual	Disclosure	Report	required	by	the	Security	and	Exchange	Commission	in	order	to	comply	
with	 Rule	 15(c)(2)-12(b)(5),	which	 relates	 to	 additional	 reporting	 requirements	 for	 un-rated	 bond	
issues.	

Annual	Audit	

The	District	is	required	annually	to	conduct	an	audit	of	its	financial	records.	

Trustee	Fees	

The	Trustee	administers	the	District’s	Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds.		The	amount	represents	the	
annual	fee	for	the	administration	of	the	District’s	bond	issue.	

Management	Fees	

The	District	receives	management,	accounting	and	administrative	services	as	part	of	a	management	
agreement	with	Governmental	Management	Services,	LLC	(“GMS”).		These	services	are	further	outlined	
in	Exhibit	“A”	of	the	Management	Agreement	with	GMS.			

Website	Maintenance	

Represents	the	costs	associated	with	monitoring	and	maintaining	the	District’s	website	created	
in	 accordance	 with	 Chapter	 189,	 Florida	 Statutes.	 These	 services	 include	 site	 performance	
assessments,	 security	 and	 firewall	 maintenance,	 updates,	 document	 uploads,	 hosting	 and	
domain	renewals,	website	backups,	etc.	

Information	Technology	

Represents	costs	related	to	the	District’s	information	systems,	which	include	but	are	not	limited	
to	video	conferencing	services,	cloud	storage	services	and	servers,	security,	accounting	software,	
etc.	

Telephone	

Telephone	conference	costs	for	District	meetings,	workshops	and	committee	meetings.	

Postage	

Mailing	of	agenda	packages,	overnight	deliveries,	correspondence,	etc.	

Insurance	

The	District’s	General	Liability	&	Public	Officials	Liability	 Insurance	policy	 is	with	Florida	 Insurance	
Alliance.		FIA	specializes	in	providing	insurance	coverage	to	governmental	agencies.			



Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District	

General	Fund	Budget	

Page 5 

Printing	&	Binding	

Printing	and	Binding	agenda	packages	for	board	meetings,	printing	of	computerized	checks,	stationary,	
envelopes,	etc.	

Legal	Advertising	

The	District	is	required	to	advertise	various	notices	for	monthly	Board	meetings,	public	hearings	etc.	in	
a	newspaper	of	general	circulation.	

Other	Current	Charges	

Estimated	bank	charges	and	any	other	miscellaneous	expenses	that	incurred	during	the	year.	

Office	Supplies	

Miscellaneous	office	supplies.	

Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions	

The	District	is	required	to	pay	an	annual	fee	to	the	Department	of	Economic	Opportunity	for	$175.		This	
is	the	only	expense	under	this	category	for	the	District.	

Field:	

Security		

Estimated	maintenance	costs	of	the	security	monitoring.		

Electric	

Estimated	costs	for	electric	billed	to	the	District	by	Clay	County	Electric.	

Water/Sewer/Irrigation	

Estimated	costs	for	irrigation	by	the	district	for	water,	sewer	and	irrigation.				

Repairs	and	Maintenance	

Any	costs	related	to	miscellaneous	repairs	and	maintenance	that	occur	during	the	fiscal	year.	

Landscape	Maintenance	

Estimated	costs	related	to	maintain	the	common	areas	of	the	District.	



Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District	

General	Fund	Budget	

Page 6 

Landscape	Contingency	

Estimated	costs	for	other	landscape	maintenance	incurred	by	the	District.	

Landscape	Pond	Banks	

Estimated	costs	to	maintain	ponds	in	the	District.	

Lake	Maintenance	

Estimated	costs	to	maintain	ponds	throughout	the	District.		

Irrigation	Repairs	

Estimated	miscellaneous	irrigation	maintenance	and	repair	costs.			

Amenity:	

Insurance	

Estimated	Property	Insurance	policy	from	Florida	Insurance	Alliance.		

Phone/Internet/Cable	

Estimated	costs	for	phone,	cable	and	internet	in	the	Amenity	Center.		

Electric	

Estimated	costs	for	electric	billed	to	the	District	by	Clay	County	Electric.	

Water/Irrigation	

Estimated	costs	for	irrigation	by	the	district	for	water,	sewer	and	irrigation.			

Gas	

The	estimated	cost	for	gas	for	firepit/grills.	

Refuse	Service		

Estimated	cost	for	refuse	removal	service.		

Security	Monitoring	

Estimated	maintenance	costs	of	the	security	monitoring.		



Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District	

General	Fund	Budget	

Page 7 

Access	Cards	

Entry	cards	are	issued	to	all	CDD	residents	for	facility	access.	

Field	Management	

Estimated	 costs	 for	 onsite	 field	management	 of	 contracts	 for	 District	 Services	 such	 as	 landscaping,	
amenity	&	pool	facilities,	lake	maintenance,	etc.	

Fitness	Equipment	Rentals	

The	District	has	contracted	with	Sofitco	to	rent	fitness	equipment.		

Janitorial	Maintenance	

Estimated	costs	for	janitorial	services	for	the	Amenity	Center.	

Janitorial	Supplies	

Estimated	costs	for	janitorial	for	janitorial	supplies	for	Amenity	Center.	

Pool	Maintenance	

Estimated	cost	to	maintain	the	Amenity	swimming	pools.		

Facility	Maintenance	

Estimated	cost	for	maintenance	and	repairs	necessary	for	upkeep	of	the	Amenity	Center	and	common	
grounds	area.		

Repair	and	Maintenance	

Any	costs	related	to	miscellaneous	repairs	and	maintenance	that	occur	during	the	fiscal	year.	

Special	Events	

Represents	estimated	costs	for	the	District	to	host	special	events	for	the	community	through	the	Fiscal	
Year.		

Fitness	Center	R&M	

Estimated	 costs	 to	 provide	maintenance	 and	 repairs	 necessary	 for	 upkeep	 of	 the	 Amenity	 Fitness	
Center.	

Office	Supplies		

Office	supplies	for	the	Amenity	Center.	



Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District	

General	Fund	Budget	

Page 8 

ASCAP/BMI	License	Fees	

Represent	estimated	costs	for	music	licenses	for	Amenity	Center.	

Pest	Control	

The	estimated	costs	for	monthly	pest	control	services.		

Capital	Outlay	

Estimated	costs	of	capital	assets,	such	as	equipment,	goods	and	services,	the	benefits	of	which	extend	
beyond	the	fiscal	year	that	materially	increase	their	value	or	useful	life.	

Reserves	

Establishment	of	general	reserve	for	operating	capital	and	to	fund	future	replacements.	



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



June	30,	2021

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting



1

2

3

4

Table	of	Contents

Balance	Sheet

General	Fund	Income	Statement

Month	to	Month

Developer	Contributions	Schedule



General	Fund

ASSETS:

Cash $17,823
Accounts	Receivable	 $10,959

TOTAL	ASSETS $28,782

LIABILITIES:

Accounts	Payable $0

FUND	BALANCES:
Unrestricted $28,782

TOTAL		LIABILITIES	&	FUND	EQUITY	 $28,782

Anabelle	Island

June	30,	2021
	BALANCE	SHEET

Community	Development	District

1



ADOPTED PRORATED	BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET 6/30/21 6/30/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Developer	Contributions	 $64,526 $32,263 $30,959 ($1,304)

TOTAL		REVENUES $64,526 $32,263 $30,959 ($1,304)

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

Supervisors	Fees $6,000 $3,000 $646 $2,354
FICA	Expense $459 $230 $0 $230
Engineering $6,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000
Attorney $12,500 $6,250 $0 $6,250
Assessment	Administration $0 $0 $0 $0
Management	Fees $22,500 $11,250 $0 $11,250
Website	Creation/ADA	Compliance $1,750 $875 $0 $875
Website	Maintenance $600 $300 $0 $300
Information	Technology $900 $450 $0 $450
Telephone $250 $125 $0 $125
Postage $500 $250 $0 $250
Insurance $3,500 $1,750 $0 $1,750
Printing	&	Binding $500 $250 $0 $250
Legal	Advertising $8,000 $4,000 $1,530 $2,470
Other	Current	Charges $500 $250 $1 $249
Office	Supplies $417 $209 $0 $209
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions $150 $150 $0 $150

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES $64,526 $32,338 $2,177 $30,161

EXCESS	REVENUES	(EXPENDITURES) $0 $28,782

FUND	BALANCE	-	Beginning $0 $0

FUND	BALANCE	-	Ending $0 $28,782

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

GENERAL	FUND
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures

For	The	Period	Ending
June	30,	2021

2



Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Total

REVENUES

Developer	Contributions	 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $10,959 $0 $0 $0 $30,959

TOTAL	REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $10,959 $0 $0 $0 $30,959

EXPENDITURES

Supervisors	Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $646 $0 $0 $0 $646
FICA	Expense $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Attorney $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Assessment	Administration $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Management	Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Website	Creation/ADA	Compliance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Website	Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Information	Technology $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Telephone $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Postage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Insurance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Printing	&	Binding $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Legal	Advertising $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,530 $0 $0 $0 $1,530
Other	Current	Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1 $0 $0 $0 $1
Office	Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,177 $0 $0 $0 $2,177

EXCESS	REVENUES	(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $8,782 $0 $0 $0 $28,782

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

3



Developer	Contributions/Due	from	Developer

Funding	 Date Date Check	 Total General Capital	 Over	and
Request Prepared Payment	 Amount Funding	 Fund (Due	to (short)

# Received Request Portion Developer) Balance	Due

1 4/6/21 2/8/21 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 4/30/21 6/28/21 $10,958.90 $10,958.90 $9,420.40 $1,538.50 $0.00
3 5/27/21 $12,045.61 $8,448.11 $3,597.50 ($12,045.61)
4 7/4/21 $20,189.81 $10,491.31 $9,698.50 ($20,189.81)

Due	from	Developer $30,958.90 $63,194.32 $48,359.82 $14,834.50 ($32,235.42)

Total	Developer	Contributions	FY21 $63,194.32

Anabelle	Island	
Community	Development	District

4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Community	Development	District FY	21	Funding	Request	#4
July	4,	2021

	 PAYEE
CAPITAL	
PROJECT

GENERAL			
FUND

1 Hopping	Green	&	Sams
Inv	#	123135	-	General	Counsel	-	May	2021 3,690.81$				
Inv	#	123136	-	Bond	Validation	-	May	2021 2,373.50$				

2 Governmental	Management	Services
Inv	#	3	-	Management	Fees	-	June	2021 4,208.50$				

3 Clay	Today	
Inv	#	323511	-	Notice	of	uniform	method	of	collection	-	4/13/21 376.00$							
Inv	#	323514	-	Notice	of	public	hearing	-	4/13/21 146.00$							
Inv	#	324847	-	Notice	of	Audit	Committee	Meeting	-	5/19/21 51.00$										
Inv	#	325244	-	Notice	of	public	hearing	-	6/1/21 152.00$							
Inv	#	325573	-	Notice	of	Meeting	-	6/9/21 51.00$										
Inv	#	325756	-	Request	for	Proposals	for	Annual	Audit	Services		-	6/15/21 66.00$										

4 ReAlign	Web	Design
Inv	#	51124	-	Completed	Website	-	anabelleislandcdd.com	-	6/3/21 1,750.00$				

5 Dunn	&	Associates,	Inc.
Inv	#21-423	-	Project	work	-	6/25/2021 7,325.00$				

9,698.50$			 10,491.31$	

TOTAL 20,189.81$	

Please	make	check	payable	to:
Anabelle	Island		CDD
475	W	Town	Place	Suite	114
Saint	Augustine,	FL	32092

Signature:

Signature:

Anabelle	Island

Chairman/Vice	Chairman

Secretary/Asst.	Secretary


	Agenda
	III.	Consideration of Minutes of the June 8, 2021 Meeting 
	IV.	Acceptance of the Minutes of the June 8, 2021 Audit Committee Meeting
	V.	Acceptance of Audit Committee’s Recommendation; Consideration of Proposals for Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Services
	Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank
	Grau & Associates

	VI.	Discussion of Fiscal Year 2022 Budget
	X.	Financial Statements as of June 30, 2021
	XI.	Consideration of Funding Request No. 4



